

City of Richmond Formal Meeting Minutes

900 East Broad Street Richmond, VA 23219 www.richmondgov.com/cityclerk

Monday, November 14, 2016

6:00 PM

Council Chamber, 2nd Floor - City Hall

Richmond City Council met in the Council Chamber on Monday, November 14, 2016, at 6:30 p.m.

Invocation was offered by Reverend Donna Tucker, City of Jericho, 1608 Hull Street, Richmond, VA.

Members of Council and the audience recited the Pledge of Allegiance.

Councilmembers Present

The Honorable Michelle Mosby, President

The Honorable Chris Hilbert, Vice President

The Honorable Parker Agelasto

The Honorable Jonathan Baliles

The Honorable Kathy Graziano

The Honorable Cynthia Newbille

The Honorable Ellen Robertson

The Honorable Charles Samuels

The Honorable Reva Trammell

CHAMBER EVACUATION PLAN AND CITIZEN SPEAKER GUIDELINES

President Michelle Mosby called the meeting to order and presided. Upon the President's request, Deputy City Clerk Candice Reid provided information on the appropriate manner in which the Council Chamber is to be evacuated in the event of an emergency along with citizen speaker guidelines.

APPOINTMENTS/REAPPOINTMENTS

Councilor Kathy Graziano moved that the following appointments/reappointments be approved:

Board Name	Criteria for Appointment	Applicant Name	<u>Terms</u>
Richmond Regional Planning District Commission	Qualified voter and resident of the city of Richmond	Michael C. Gray (reappointment)	11/22/2016 – 11/22/2019
Affordable Housing Trust Fund Oversight Board	Representative of the Richmond Association of Realtors *	Jean Longest (reappointment)	11/14/2016 – 11/10/2019

Aging and Disabilities Advisory Board	Resident of the city who is a disabled person	Larry James Young, Jr. (reappointment)	11/14/2016 – 11/14/2019
	Representative of the business community	Bonnie Predd (reappointment)	12/09/2016 – 12/09/2019
	Resident of the city who is a senior citizen	A. Lynn Ivey (reappointment)	12/09/2016 – 12/09/2019
Clean City Commission	2 nd District qualified voter	Miriam Lack (reappointment)	01/28/2017 – 01/28/2019
	8 th District qualified voter	Catherine M. Welsh (reappointment)	01/28/2017 – 01/28/2019
	Corporate or citizen volunteer	Julian Gordon (reappointment)	01/28/2017 — 01/28/2019
		M. Jane Hotchkiss (reappointment)	01/28/2017 — 01/28/2019
Highway Safety Commission	Expertise in transportation safety *	Max Hepp-Buchanan (reappointment)	12/09/2016 – 12/09/2019
Board of Commissioners of the Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority	*	Robley Jones (reappointment)	01/12/2017 — 01/12/2021
Board of Directors of the Richmond Metropolitan Convention and Visitors Bureau	*	Paige Bishop (reappointment)	01/01/2017 — 12/31/2019
		Jen Kostyniuk	01/01/2017 – 12/31/2019 Succeeding Iris E. Holliday, resigned
Advisory Board for the Assessment of Towing Fees and the Storage of Vehicles	Towing and recovery operator *	Orlando S. Orefice, Jr.	11/14/2016 – 05/24/2019 Succeeding Gordon S. Burke, no longer eligible
Capital Area Alcohol Safety Action Program Policy Advisory Board	*	K. Scott Miles (reappointment)	01/10/2017 — 01/10/2020
City Personnel Board	City resident	Joshua L. Mathews-Ailsworth	01/10/2017 – 01/10/2020 Succeeding Jeffon T. Neal, not eligible for reappointment
		Betty L. Squire (reappointment)	01/10/2017 - 01/10/2020
	Member of the classified service of the city of Richmond appointed on an interim basis pending the completion of the election process for which Res. No. 2007-R122-111 calls	David Kilmon	Commencing 11/14/2016 and terminating upon the appointment of a classified employee as successor following the completion of the election process for which Resolution No. 2007-R122-111 calls.

*Applicants must reside or work in the city.

The motion was seconded and unanimously approved.

A copy of the information provided has been filed.

AWARDS AND PRESENTATIONS

There were no awards or presentations.

President Mosby recognized those individuals that were present from the Virginia Commonwealth University (VCU) Master of Public Administration program.

CITIZEN COMMENT

Robert McCracken expressed concerns with a lack of cooperation from city staff regarding special use project 9812. Mr. McCracken stated that it has been almost nine months and the project is not complete due to unanswered questions. Mr. McCracken provided a handout to Council referencing his concerns and asked how the situation could be resolved.

President Michelle Mosby recommended that Mr. McCracken meet with Lela Jefferson, executive assistant to the mayor, to discuss his concerns. President Mosby also requested that Ms. Jefferson provide her with an update following their meeting.

A copy of the information provided has been filed.

Marie Morton Hart expressed concerns regarding trees on her property and requested assistance from the city to remove the trees.

Cheryl Nici-O'Connell expressed appreciation to Council and citizens for their support during her recovery from an injury she sustained while on duty in 1984 and requested that all citizens support law enforcement.

Glenwood Burley thanked Council for its support of the relocation of the Richmond Police Memorial statue and requested that Council keep all the city's statues in pristine condition.

AGENDA REVIEW AND AMENDMENTS

Councilor Charles Samuels moved to amend the agenda as follows:

ORD. 2014-093

To establish an Advisory Task Force for the Economic Revitalization of South Richmond to provide advice to the Council, the Mayor and other City agencies concerning strategies and initiatives to improve the economic health of and promote economic development in certain Enterprise Zones and along certain corridors of South Richmond.

To be continued to Monday, February 13, 2017

ORD. 2015-199

To amend City Code §§ 38-156, concerning the abatement of certain refuse, litter and weed control violations, and 86-44, concerning the times and places of collection for bulk items, brush and loose leaves, for the purposes of requiring the Chief Administrative Officer to waive certain fees for the abatement of certain violations, requiring the Director of Public Works to provide written notification of the date on which bulk items are scheduled for collection, and prohibiting the placement of bulk items for collection on or near a public right-of-way more than 48 hours before the date scheduled for collection.

To be continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

ORD. 2016-204

To reduce the speed limit on West Grace Street between North Lombardy Street and North Boulevard from 25 miles per hour to 20 miles per hour.

To be continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

ORD. 2016-221

To amend the Chesapeake Bay Preservation Areas Map in accordance with ch. 14, art. IV of the City Code for the purpose of adding new development and stream determinations approved by the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.

To be continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

ORD. 2016-244

To repeal ch. 2, art. V, div. 11 (§§ 2-1035—2-1036) of the City Code, concerning the Career and Technical Education Commission, for the purpose of abolishing the Commission.

To be continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

ORD. 2016-260

To amend ch. 2, art. IV, div. 4 of the City Code by adding therein a new section 2-323, concerning monthly vacancy and turnover rate reporting, for the purpose of requiring the Director of Human Resources to provide a monthly vacancy and turnover rate report to the Council Chief of Staff for distribution to the City Council.

To be amended and continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

ORD. 2016-264

To amend and reordain Ord. No. 2007-251-209, adopted Sept. 24, 2007, as previously amended by Ord. No. 2008-117-93, adopted May 27, 2008, and Ord. No. 2013-117-113, adopted Jun. 24, 2013, concerning the establishment of a residential permit parking district in the Carver Neighborhood, for the purpose of adding certain streets and portions of streets to the Carver Residential Permit Parking District.

To be continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

RES. 2016-R007

To declare a public necessity and to initiate an amendment to the City's zoning ordinance making the Department of Planning and Development Review, instead of the Office of the City Clerk, responsible for the mailing of required notices of City Planning Commission meetings.

To be continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

RES. 2016-R057

To amend Res. No. 2003-R230-2004-R18, adopted Jan. 12, 2004, as previously amended by Res. No. 2010-R141-173, adopted Nov. 8, 2010, and Res. No. 2016-R017, adopted Mar. 28, 2016, which established a procedure to be followed before the Council appoints a tenant representative to serve on the Board of Commissioners of the Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority, to provide for the appointment of a Housing Choice Voucher user as a third tenant representative.

To be continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

ORD. 2015-033

To rename the building located at 900 East Broad Street and known as "City Hall" as "L. Douglas Wilder City Hall."

To be continued to Monday, January 23, 2017

ORD. 2016-140

To amend ch. 12, art. II of the City Code by adding therein a new section 12-37, concerning the disposition of certain revenues from real estate taxes, for the purpose of funding the operation of public schools in the city.

To be continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

RES. 2015-R064

To request that the Chief Administrative Officer cause to be conducted a study to determine the feasibility of developing a program to connect panhandlers in the city of Richmond with day jobs and charitable and social service organizations by using mobile services and the City's 311 Call Center as an initiative to reduce homelessness and panhandling.

To be continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

RES. 2016-R016

To establish a policy of the Council that the Council will appoint no person to the Board of Commissioners of the Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority to more than two consecutive full terms.

To be continued to Monday, December 12, 2016

The motion was seconded and unanimously approved.

CONSENT AGENDA

The following ordinances and resolutions were considered:

ORD. 2016-226

To amend Ord. No. 2016-116, adopted Apr. 25, 2016, which authorized the Chief Administrative Officer to submit a Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan to the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) as an application for the receipt of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) funds, Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds and Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) funds; accepted funds from the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development in the total amount of \$6,362,297; and appropriated \$6,562,297 for various projects, for the purpose of authorizing the cancellation of 16 CDBG activities, accepting \$5,940 in additional HOME funds, and appropriating this \$5,940 for the Citywide Owner Occupied Home Repair project.

ORD. 2016-231

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, for and on behalf of the City of Richmond, to execute a Computer-Aided Dispatch Interface User Agreement between the City of Richmond and Virginia Commonwealth University for the purpose of allowing the Virginia Commonwealth University Police Department to become an operational user of the Department of Emergency Communications'

computer-aided dispatch and mobile data communications systems and facilitating interoperability between the Department of Police and the Virginia Commonwealth University Police Department.

ORD. 2016-234

To conditionally rezone the properties known as 111 Hull Street and a portion of 1 Hull Street from the RF-1 Riverfront District to the B-4C Central Business District (Conditional).

ORD, 2016-245

To erect all-way stop signs at the intersection of Parkwood Avenue and South Randolph Street.

ORD. 2016-250

To declare a public necessity for and to authorize the acquisition of certain fee simple interests and easements in parcels of real property owned by South Canal, LLC at 1 Hull Street, 115 Hull Street, and 2 Decatur Street for the purposes of right-of-way, clearing title to City-owned real estate, providing access to and a buffer for the City's flood wall, and providing stormwater utility facilities.

ORD. 2016-251

To declare surplus and direct the conveyance of a portion of City-owned real estate located at 1 Hull Street for nominal consideration to South Canal, LLC for the purpose of facilitating the development of that land and other land in the immediate vicinity thereof.

ORD. 2016-252

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, on behalf of the City of Richmond, to execute a Development and Cooperation Agreement and related documents between the City of Richmond and South Canal, LLC for the purposes of clearing title to properties owned by the parties, providing for access by the parties to their respective parcels, advancing the City's Riverfront Plan and Master Plan, and stimulating economic development in the area generally bounded by Hull Street to the east, railroad tracks to the south and west, and the James River to the north.

ORD. 2016-253

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, for and on behalf of the City of Richmond, to execute a Programmatic Project Administration Agreement [Extension Addendum] between the City of Richmond and the Virginia Department of Transportation for the purpose of [extending until Jun. 30, 2019, a Programmatic Project Administration Agreement for] the development and administration of [certain] previously authorized and future Revenue Sharing Program projects [authorized by Ord. No. 2013-191-175, adopted Sept. 23, 2013]. (As Amended)

ORD. 2016-254

To establish a Task Force on the Establishment of a Human Rights Commission to evaluate the need for and scope of a Human Rights Commission and to provide the Council with recommendations concerning any necessity to create such a commission.

SUPPORT

Rikya Taylor, VCU student, informed Council that a human rights commission could assist citizens with research and with claims of discrimination.

ORD. 2016-255

To amend and reordain City Code § 16-114, concerning regulations for the Affordable Housing Trust Fund, for the purpose of reducing the portion of the Affordable Housing Trust Fund that is to be dedicated to certain uses from at least one-third to at least 30 percent and imposing a new requirement that such regulations include housing-related support services as an option for the use of at least 30 percent of the Affordable Housing Trust Fund.

ORD. 2016-256

To amend City Code § 28-592, concerning the fee for commercial or industrial wastewater accounts, for the purpose of allowing a reduction in the fee where a portion of the metered water used for industrial purposes will not be discharged back into the sewer system, pursuant to rules and regulations made by the Director of Public Utilities.

ORD. 2016-258

To amend and reordain ch. 24, art. II of the City Code by adding therein a new div. 10, consisting of §§ 24-265 through 24-272, concerning valet parking on public ways in the city; and to amend and reordain Appendix A of the City Code by adding therein for City Code § 24-269 new fees applicable to valet parking permits.

ORD. 2016-261

To authorize the special use of a portion of the property known as 1407 Cummings Drive for the purpose of a residential use with up to 40 units accessory to a vocational school and other permitted principal uses on the property, upon certain terms and conditions.

ORD. 2016-262

To authorize the special use of the property known as 203 Rear North Davis for the purpose of permitting garages; offices, including business, professional and administrative offices; studios of writers, designers and artists; and uses accessory to an off-site home occupation within an existing structure, upon certain terms and conditions.

ORD. 2016-265

To amend and reordain City Code §§ 26-361 and 26-431, concerning interest on delinquent taxes, for the purpose of fixing the annual rate of interest for delinquent taxes at ten percent.

ORD, 2016-266

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to accept funds in the amount of \$131,910.31 from AIG/Lexington Insurance Company and to appropriate the increase to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Capital Budget by increasing estimated revenues and the amount appropriated to the Major Building Renovations project in the City Facilities category by \$131,910.31 for the purpose of applying insurance proceeds to the repair of the roof of a City-owned building located at 1700 Commerce Road.

ORD. 2016-267

To amend and reordain Ord. No. 84-228-207, adopted Sept. 24, 1984, as previously amended by Ord. No. 84-253-226, adopted Oct. 22, 1984, and Ord. No. 2010-30-38, adopted Feb. 22, 2010, which authorized the special use of the property known as 5611 Grove Avenue for the purposes of personal services and non-medical office uses, to authorize retail stores and shops and art galleries, upon certain terms and conditions.

ORD. 2016-268

To rezone the properties known as 5903 Grove Avenue, 6001 Grove Avenue, 6 Maple Avenue, 10 Maple Avenue, 5604 Cary Street Road, 5606 Cary Street Road, and 5902 Three Chopt Road from the R-1 Single-Family Residential District to the IC Institutional District (Conditional).

ORD. 2016-269

To authorize the Director of Procurement Services, for and on behalf of the City of Richmond, to execute a Goods and Services Contract between the City of Richmond and CliftonLarsonAllen LLP for the performance of an independent financial audit of all accounts, books, records and financial transactions of the City for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.

RES. 2016-R072

To impose enhanced speeding penalties pursuant to City Code § 27-163 and to authorize the placement of signs giving notice thereof on the portion of Bainbridge Street located between its intersection with Cowardin Avenue and its north intersection with West 30th Street.

RES. 2016-R073

To impose enhanced speeding penalties pursuant to City Code § 27-163 and to authorize the placement of signs giving notice thereof on the portion of Crutchfield Street located between Westover Hills Boulevard and West Roanoke Street.

RES. 2016-R076

To name a portion of an east-west alley located in the block bounded by Parkwood Avenue, South Robinson Street, Grayland Avenue, and South Mulberry Street as "Robinson Square Alley."

There were no further comments or discussion and **the Consent Agenda was unanimously adopted.**

REGULAR AGENDA

The following ordinance was considered:

ORD. 2016-033

To amend ch. 2, art. III, div. 7 of the City Code by adding therein a new section 2-216, concerning the obstruction of inspector general investigations, to provide that certain employees who obstruct inspector general investigations by denying the Office of the City Auditor, when not required by law to so deny, immediate access to information are subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination by their appointing authority. (As Amended)

Councilor Charles Samuels stated that the ordinance does not state that an employee will be terminated if information is denied to the inspector general; however, delaying or hindering an investigation could have consequences of disciplinary action that could include termination.

Human Resources Director Johnny McLean stated that there are several policies and regulations currently in place that cover infractions as specified within the proposed ordinance and that the proposed ordinance is subject to interpretation.

Councilor Kathy Graziano asked the city attorney if the inspector general currently has the authority as specified within the proposed ordinance, and stated that the "immediate response" phrasing could put an individual's position in jeopardy.

City Attorney Allen Jackson responded by stating that the inspector general does not have the authority expressed in the proposed ordinance.

Councilor Cynthia Newbille clarified that the City Charter does not currently codify the inspector general's immediate access to information and asked if the employee disciplinary action is determined by the inspector general or the appointing authority.

City Attorney Allen Jackson stated that the disciplinary action of an employee is determined by the appointing authority.

Vice president Hilbert asked if the patron would consider continuing and/or amending the proposed ordinance.

Councilor Charles Samuels moved to continue ORD. 2016-033 to the December 12, 2016 Council meeting or the next special meeting, whichever occurs first. The motion was seconded and unanimously approved.

The following ordinance was considered:

ORD. 2016-217

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to accept grant funds in the amount of \$635,000 from the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality and to appropriate the increase to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Capital Budget by increasing estimated revenues and the amount appropriated to the Department of Public Utilities' Stormwater Facilities Improvements project in the Utilities category by \$635,000 for the purpose of constructing the Reedy Creek Stream Restoration project.

Deputy Chief Administrative Officer for Operations John Buturla stated that extensive discussions have occurred regarding the Reedy Creek Stream Restoration project and city administration recommends moving forward with the project as proposed.

OPPOSITION

Dan Mowyer, archeologist, expressed opposition to the proposed legislation stating that there has not been a complete study of cultural resources.

David Ridderhoff provided an overall statement describing members of the Reedy Creek Coalition stating that they would be giving additional reasons against the project.

Melvin Ely addressed the argument made at the meeting of the City Planning Commission (CPC) that stated the city could not afford to turn down the grant specified for the Reedy Creek project. Mr. Ely also stated that the city stated that in accepting the grant the project must be completed as specified within the proposed legislation.

Dr. Arthur Butt expressed opposition to the proposed legislation stating that the project will not improve water quality for Reedy Creek, the James River or the Chesapeake Bay, but will destroy valuable habitats that will take decades to recover. Dr. Butt stated that the problem lies with the upstream of Reedy Creek.

Carolyn Paulette of the Forest Hill Designation Committee, stated that she is opposed to the proposed ordinance as an article in the *Bay Journal*, reported that there is little data to back up the need for watershed restoration projects.

Mary Gathji expressed opposition to the proposed legislation stating that the main problem is the concrete channel above the project site which causes algae to grow and eliminates aquatic life downstream because it absorbs oxygen that is needed for wildlife.

Bill McKelway expressed opposition to the proposed legislation stating that the area offers an opportunity for tranquility, peace and calm to an area that has suffered much distress.

Catherine Harold expressed opposition to the proposed legislation due to risk factors of urban stream restoration in addition to the lack of a long-term maintenance program. Ms. Harold stated that the Reedy Creek project is not a restoration project but a relocation project.

Craig Curwood expressed opposition to the proposed legislation stating that he desires preservation of the area's wildlife and vegetation, and if destroyed, it will take years to replenish.

Bill Shanabruch stated that he hoped Council will reject the proposed ordinance so the Reedy Creek Coalition can return to helping restore watersheds.

Corby Faye stated that he is opposed the proposed ordinance as the project will destroy the woodland habitat around the creek.

Suzette Line expressed opposition to the proposed ordinance as maintenance is needed on the creek banks to end erosion and with almost seven acres cleared and trees being replanted, the trees will need watering and the new ground coverings must be controlled as the network of roots is what stabilizes the ground.

James McDonald expressed opposition to the proposed ordinance stating that the Department of Public Utilities needs to consider other sites for restoration and not Reedy Creek.

Alistair Jones stated that he opposed the proposed ordinance as there has been no planning for the restoration project and that it is deforestation through the cutting down of 430 trees.

Peter Mollica expressed opposition to the proposed ordinance by stating that the Reedy Creek runoff is the result of the Army Corp of Engineers saving a stream.

SUPPORT

Judith Warrington expressed support of the proposed ordinance as one litigation project within this watershed is better than none, and once the project is started, it will be easier to acquire funding for another project within the same watershed.

Jackie Jones stated that she was in support of the proposed ordinance as she is in support of reducing pollution in the James River and Chesapeake Bav.

Alex Martin expressed support of the proposed ordinance stating that the benefits of the Reedy Creek outweight the problems that plague the effected neighborhood. Mr. Martin also stated that this project will reduce pollutants in Forest Hill Park, the James River and the Chesapeake Bay.

Mike Oust of Environmental Quality Resources, stated that individuals need to look at the project in a positive way and noted several similar projects that have been completed.

Mike Rolband, owner – Wetlands Study and Solutions, stated that, to repair a stream there had to be some destruction, but the long-term positive outcome will be the re-growth of trees and the ability to control invasive growth. Mr. Rolband also stated that slowing the creek's water flow would increase habitat values.

Kathy Hoverman, senior stream restoration designer, stated that research shows that stream restoration works. Ms. Hoverman further stated that streams are highly degraded, they do not heal themselves and will continue to erode the water banks. Ms. Hoverman also stated that restoration can eliminate continual pollution.

Councilor Kathy Graziano stated that, despite words to the contrary, the Department of Public Utilities (DPU) has put much effort in selecting Reedy Creek for the restoration project, and without discussion to resolve differences, she must vote yes for the proposed ordinance.

Councilor Charles Samuels stated that, should the proposed ordinance be voted down, the city residents and DPU will have the opportunity to work on a resolution that is satisfactory to all parties.

Vice President Chris Hilbert stated that discussion should include citizen input and postponing consideration of the proposed ordinance would all for that.

Councilor Cynthia Newbille stated that the city needs to review the project and offer additional option to comply with pollution reduction. Ms. Newbille requested that administration consider amending the proposed legislation.

Councilor Cynthia Newbille moved to continue Ordinance 2016-217. The motion failed for lack of a second.

Councilor Ellen Robertson stated that the city has an obligation to be in compliance but the community has voiced strong opinions against the Reedy Creek project; therefore, there should be an opportunity to work toward a reasonable compromise between the city and community residents.

Councilor Parker Agelasto stated that the city should be mindful of the community impact, the grant does not allow for flexibility in redesigning the project and the City Planning Commission failed to recommend approval of the proposed ordinance.

Councilor Jonathan Baliles stated that the proposed ordinance is to meet specified state requirements and rejecting the proposed ordinance would mean losing grant money; however, the city does need time to address specific pollution issues.

ORD. 2016-217 was rejected: Ayes 1, Graziano. Noes 8, Baliles, Samuels, Agelasto, Robertson, Trammell, Newbille, Hilbert, Mosby.

The following ordinance was considered:

ORD. 2016-257

To amend and reordain City Code § 26-355, concerning the levy of tax on real estate, to establish a tax rate of \$1.20 for the tax year beginning Jan. 1, 2017, pursuant to Va. Code § 58.1-3321(b), and increasing such rate from the Rolled Back Tax Rate of \$1.18 as computed in accordance with Va. Code § 58.1-3321(a).

Councilor Kathy Graziano stated that the proposed ordinance maintains the current real estate tax rate for 2017.

ORD. 2016-257 was adopted: Ayes 8, Baliles, Graziano, Samuels, Robertson, Trammell, Newbille, Hilbert, Mosby. Noes, None. Agelasto was temporarily excused.

The following ordinance was considered:

ORD. 2016-263

To provide for the granting by the City of Richmond to the person, firm or corporation to be ascertained in the manner prescribed by law of certain easements upon, over, under, and across certain property located in Joseph Bryan Park at 4308 Hermitage Road for the construction, maintenance, and operation of sewer improvements and associated appurtenances in accordance with a certain Deed of Utilities Easement.

President Michelle Mosby read into record the bid from Henrico County.

Councilor Kathy Graziano moved to continue Ordinance 2016-263 to the December 12, 2016 Council meeting and to refer the proposed ordinance to the November 22, 2016 Land

Use, Housing and Transportation Standing Committee meeting for consideration, which was seconded and unanimously approved.

Councilor Charles Samuels noted that, since only one bid was received for consideration, there could be reconsideration of the previous motion.

Councilor Charles Samuels moved to reconsider Ordinance 2016-263, which was seconded and unanimously approved.

Director of Public Works Robert Steidel stated that his staff recommends approval of the Henrico County bid.

Deputy Director of Parks and Recreation Barry Russell stated that Parks and Recreation also supports the Henrico County bid.

Councilor Kathy Graziano moved to accept the Henrico County bid and to adopt Ordinance 2016-263, which was seconded and unanimously approved.

The following resolution was considered:

RES. 2016-R077

To encourage a delay in the commencement of the Reedy Creek Stream Restoration project until satisfactory alternatives to this project have been considered through the City Planning Commission and working with interested citizen groups.

Councilor Cynthia Newbille asked if the proposed resolution had a time frame in place.

Councilor Parker Agelasto responded that the resolution does not have a specified time frame as DPU is currently working on four additional stream restorations. Mr. Agelasto also stated that the proposed resolution allows public utilities to have conversations with stakeholder groups of Reedy Creek and to show that the department has done its due diligence to seeking funding.

RES. 2016-R064 was adopted unanimously.

MOTION TO AMEND AND CONTINUE

Councilor Parker Agelasto moved that the ordinance entitled:

ORD. 2016-260

To amend ch. 2, art. IV, div. 4 of the City Code by adding therein a new section 2-323, concerning monthly vacancy and turnover rate reporting, for the purpose of requiring the Director of Human Resources to provide a monthly vacancy and turnover rate report to the Council Chief of Staff for distribution to the City Council.

be amended and continued to Monday, December 12, 2016, as follows:

Page 1, Line 5

Page 1, Line 6

At the beginning of the line, strike the word "monthly", and insert the word "quarterly"

After the word "a", strike the word "monthly", and insert the word "quarterly"

Page 1, Line 16

After the period following the text "Sec. 2-323", strike the word "Monthly", and insert the word "Quarterly"

Page 1, Line 18

After the word "each", strike the word "month", and insert the text "April, July, October, and January"

Page 1, Line 19

After the word "preceding", strike the word "month", and insert the words "three months"

The motion was seconded and unanimously approved.

EXPEDITED CONSIDERATION

Councilor Cynthia Newbille moved to expedite consideration of the following resolution, which was seconded and unanimously approved:

RES. 2016-R079

To approve an expenditure in the amount of \$180.00 from the Council District Funds for the Seventh District to make a gift to Sisters Network Central VA in the form of a payment to S. B. Cox, Incorporated, for the rental of portable toilets used at the Sisters Network Central VA First Community Health Fair, held at the Bill Robinson Playground on Sept. 24, 2016.

Patrons: Ms. Newbille

Councilor Cynthia Newbille introduced RES. 2016-R079 by stating that the Sisters Network Central VA is an African American breast cancer survivorship organization.

RES. 2016-R079 was unanimously adopted.

Councilor Ellen Robertson moved to expedite consideration of the following resolution, which was seconded and unanimously approved:

RES. 2016-R080

To approve the issuance by the Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority of its multifamily housing revenue bonds in an amount up to \$36,290,000 for the acquisition, construction, renovation, rehabilitation and equipping of an approximately 278-unit multifamily residential rental housing project to be known as The Muse Apartments located at 1400 Semmes Avenue in the city of Richmond.

Patrons: Ms. Robertson

Councilor Ellen Robertson introduced RES. 2016-R080 stating that the proposal has been approved by the Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority and has been discussed with community and civic organizations.

RES. 2016-R080 was unanimously adopted.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Councilor Charles Samuels moved to approve the following Richmond City Council meeting minutes: Informal Council Session held on Monday, October 10, 2016, at 4:00 p.m., the Formal Council Session held on Monday, October 10, 2016, at 6:00 p.m. and the Special Council Session held on Monday, November 7, 2016, at 5:00 p.m.

The motion was seconded and unanimously approved.

REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councilor Kathy Graziano congratulated returning and new Council members and the mayorelect. Ms. Graziano wished citizens a happy and safe Thanksgiving and announced that the 4th District meeting would be held Tuesday, November 29th, at 7:00 p.m., at the Huguenot High School Community Center, 7945 Forest Hill Avenue.

Councilor Jonathan Baliles announced that the 1st District meeting would be Tuesday, November 22nd, at 6:00 p.m., at Albert Hill Middle School, 3400 Patterson Avenue and congratulated to all successful candidates of the November 8th elections. Mr. Baliles also wished citizens a happy Thanksgiving.

Councilor Charles Samuels announced that the Historic Jackson Ward Association would meet on Tuesday, November 15th, at 6:00 p.m., at the UNOS Jackson Center, 501 North 2nd Street. Mr. Samuels also stated that the Museum District Association meeting would be Thursday, November 17th, at 7:00 p.m., at Temple Bethel, 3330 Grove Avenue and the West Grace Street Association board meeting would be Monday, November 21st, at 6:30 p.m., at Orchard House School, 500 North Allen Avenue. Councilor Samuels stated that the Robinson Street Association would meet on Tuesday, November 22nd, at 5:30 p.m., on the first floor of Retreat Hospital, 2621 Grove Avenue and the Carver Area Civic Improvement League would meet on Tuesday, November 29th, at 7:00 p.m., at 1103 West Marshall Street. Councilor Samuels also stated that the Fan Area Business meeting would be on Tuesday, November 29th, at 4:30 p.m., and the Fan District Association meeting would be held on Monday, December 5th, at 7:00 p.m., with both meetings to be held at 208 North Strawberry Street. Councilor Samuels congratulated all successful candidates on their elections to office.

Councilor Parker Agelasto congratulated all new City Council representatives, mayor-elect Levar Stoney and new school board members. Councilor Agelasto stated that the 5th District holiday party will be on Thursday, December 1st, at 6:30 p.m., at the Carillon, 1300 Blanton Avenue. Councilor Agelasto also stated that the Swansboro Civic Association would meet on Thursday, November 17th, at 6:00 p.m., at St. Francis Home, 67 West Clopton Street. Mr. Agelasto also stated that, on Monday, November 21st, the Randolph Neighborhood Association would meet at 6:30 p.m., at the Randolph Community Center, 1315 Grayland Avenue and the Maymont Civic League would meet at 7:00 p.m., at the Stone Barn in Maymont Park. Councilor Agelasto announced that the Oregon Hill Neighborhood Association would meet on Tuesday, November 22nd, at 7:00 p.m., at Saint Andrews Episcopal Church, 2365 South Laurel Street, and the Uptown Civic Association will meet on Tuesday, November 29th, at 6:00 p.m., at the Vintage, 2229 West Main Street. Mr. Agelasto further stated that the Hull Street Midlothian Civic Association would meet on Monday, December 5th, at 7:00 p.m., at Koinonia Independent Christian Church, 3600 McRand Street. Councilor Agelasto asked citizens to be mindful of Small Business Saturday and to support the city's local businesses on Saturday, November 26th.

Councilwoman Reva Trammell thanked 8th District citizens and others for their support in the November 8th election. Ms. Trammell announced that the 8th District meeting would be on Thursday, November 17th, at 6:00 p.m., at the Satellite Restaurant, 4000 Jefferson Davis Highway, and offered words of support to Mayor-elect Levar Stoney. Ms. Trammell reminded citizens that they may contact her at 804-233-7382 or 804-240-5050 and also reminded citizens to contact their nearest fire station to arrange for the installation of a smoke alarm or to have existing alarms inspected at no cost.

Councilor Cynthia Newbille thanked the residents of the 7th District for their vote on November 8th and the opportunity to work together to adjust priorities of the community, city and education. Councilor Newbille congratulated Nadine Marsh-Carter, school board member-elect for the 7th District, new and returning council members and Mayor-elect Levar Stoney on their successes in the election. Ms. Newbille announced that the 7th District East End Community meeting would be held on Wednesday, November 30th, at 6:00 p.m., at the East District Center, 701 North 25th Street. Ms. Newbille also wished citizens a happy and healthy Thanksgiving.

Councilor Ellen Robertson congratulated everyone on their success in the elections on November 8th and thanked the citizens of the 6th District for their continued support. Ms. Robertson stated that she looks forward to working with new council and school board members, and Mayor-elect Levar Stoney. Councilor Robertson announced that the 6th District meeting would be held on Saturday, December 10th, with more information forthcoming. Ms. Robertson stated that the Barton Heights Civic Association would meet on Tuesday, November 15th, at Albert V. Norrell Elementary School, 2120 Fendall Avenue, and the Wickham Court Tenant Association would meet on Wednesday, November 16th, at 5:30 p.m. Councilor Robertson further stated that the Bellemeade Civic Association would be meeting on Thursday, November 17th, at 6:00 p.m., at Bellemeade Community Center, 1800 Lynhaven Avenue and the Eastview Civic League meeting would be on Friday, November 18th, at 6:30 p.m., at Wesley Memorial Church, 1720 Mechanicsville Turnpike.

Vice President Chris Hilbert thanked all veterans as they were recognized on Friday, November 11th, for their service on Veteran's Day. Vice President Hilbert announced that the Bellevue Civic Association would meet on Tuesday, November 15th, at 6:00 p.m., at Linwood Holton Elementary School, 1600 West Laburnum Avenue. Mr. Hilbert also congratulated Mayor-elect Levar Stoney and stated that he looks forward to working with him and the new council members. Vice President Hilbert expressed his appreciation to the citizens of the 3rd District for re-electing him to his fifth term on Council and wished citizens a happy Thanksgiving.

President Michelle Mosby announced that a special meeting needed to be scheduled for Tuesday. January 3, 2017 for the swearing in of Council members.

Councilor Kathy Graziano moved to schedule a special meeting to be held on Tuesday, January 3, 2017, at 5:00 p.m., prior to the Organizational Development Standing Committee meeting for the purpose of swearing in council members, which was seconded and approved: Ayes 8: Graziano, Samuels, Agelasto, Robertson, Trammell, Newbille, Hilbert and Mosby. Noes None. Baliles was temporarily excused.

PRESIDENT'S REPORT

President Michelle Mosby noted that the 9th District meeting would be held on Thursday, November 17th, with Mayor-elect Levar Stoney and Council member-elect Michael Jones in attendance. President Mosby congratulated everyone on their success in the elections of November 8th and reminded colleagues of the legislative summit on Wednesday, November 16th, at 12:00 p.m., at the Library of Virginia. President Mosby also informed citizens that the Richmond Christmas

parade would be on Saturday, December 3rd, beginning at 10:00 a.m. and wished a happy Thanksgiving.

INTRODUCTION OF NEW LEGISLATION

City Council will hold a public hearing on the following ordinances and resolutions on Monday, December 12, 2016, at 6:00 p.m.:

ORD. 2016-270

To declare surplus and to direct the sale of City-owned real estate located at 101 North 6th Street, 603, 609, 611, 615 and 619 East Grace Street, 612 East Franklin Street, and 112, 114 and 116 North 7th Street, for \$3,950,000 to City Center Development, LLC, for the purpose of the construction of a mixed-use development including commercial and residential space.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-271

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, for and on behalf of the City of Richmond, to execute a Commonwealth's Development Opportunity Fund Performance Agreement between the City of Richmond, CoStar Realty Information, Inc., the Economic Development Authority of the City of Richmond, and the, and the Virginia Economic Development Partnership Authority to facilitate the establishment of CoStar Realty Information, Inc.'s business operations in the city of Richmond and to set forth the responsibilities of the parties.

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Finance and Economic Development Standing Committee meeting on Thursday, November 17, 2016, at 3:00 p.m.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

ORD. 2016-272

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to accept funds in the amount of \$278,890 from James Madison University and to appropriate the increase to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Gas Utility Budget by increasing estimated revenues and the amount appropriated to the gas utility renewal fund for the purpose of converting diesel-powered utility vehicle engines to engines fueled by compressed natural gas.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Finance and Economic Development Standing Committee meeting on Thursday, November 17, 2016, at 3:00 p.m.

ORD. 2016-273

To provide for the granting by the City of Richmond to the person, firm or corporation to be ascertained in the manner prescribed by law of a ground lease on certain property located at 3301 Maplewood Avenue, known as City Stadium, and 800 Freeman Road for the construction, renovation, or reconstruction of improvements on such property primarily for use as a sports complex in accordance with a certain Deed of Ground Lease.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Finance and Economic Development Standing Committee meeting on Thursday, November 17, 2016, at 3:00 p.m.

ORD. 2016-274

To designate the 2500 Block of Hawthorne Avenue in honor of Andrew "Bo" Hobbs.

Patrons: Vice President Hilbert

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Land Use, Housing and Transportation Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 3:00 p.m.

ORD. 2016-275

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, for and on behalf of the City of Richmond, to execute a Standard Project Administration Agreement between the City of Richmond and the Virginia Department of Transportation for the purpose of installing sidewalk and landscaping on West Broad Street from Hamilton Street to Laurel Street.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Land Use, Housing and Transportation Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 3:00 p.m.

ORD. 2016-276

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, for and on behalf of the City of Richmond, to execute a Standard Project Administration Agreement between the City of Richmond and the Virginia Department of Transportation for the purpose of developing and administering the I-95 and Broad Street Interchange Area project.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Land Use, Housing and Transportation Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 3:00 p.m.

ORD. 2016-277

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, for and on behalf of the City of Richmond, to execute an Agreement between City of Richmond and Commonwealth of Virginia, Department of Transportation for Adjustment of Water Facilities between the City of Richmond and the Virginia Department of Transportation to facilitate the replacement of existing water utility facilities and an existing bridge as part of the Route 5 (East Main Street) Bridge Replacement over Norfolk Southern Railroad project.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Land Use, Housing and Transportation Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 3:00 p.m.

ORD. 2016-278

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, for and on behalf of the City of Richmond, to execute a First Amended and Restated Dove Street Redevelopment Program Area Implementation Program Cooperation Agreement between the City of Richmond and the Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority for the purpose of making a grant to the Authority for the design, development, and implementation of various street, sidewalk, alley, water, sewer, and drainage infrastructure

improvements necessary for the redevelopment of the Dove Street Redevelopment Area in the city of Richmond.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Land Use, Housing and Transportation Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 3:00 p.m.

Ord. 2016-279

To reduce the speed limit on Parkwood Avenue between its intersection with South Harrison Street and its intersection with South Meadow Street from 30 miles per hour to 25 miles per hour.

Patrons: Mr. Agelasto

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Public Safety Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 5:00 p.m.

Ord. 2016-280

To reduce the speed limit on Virginia State Route 161, also known as Park Drive, between its intersection with Blanton Avenue and its intersection with Pump House Drive from 35 miles per hour to 25 miles per hour.

Patrons: Mr. Agelasto

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Public Safety Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 5:00 p.m.

Ord. 2016-281

To amend Ord. No. 2016-053, adopted May 13, 2016, which adopted the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 General Fund Budget and made appropriations pursuant thereto, by transferring funds representing anticipated savings from the renegotiation of employer contributions for employee health benefits in the amount of \$835,517 from various City agencies and appropriating the transferred funds to the Department of Police for the purpose of funding an additional police recruit class.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Public Safety Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 5:00 p.m.

Ord. 2016-282

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to accept funds in the amount of \$860,451 from Central Virginia Investments/Rocketts Landing, LLC and to appropriate the increase to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 General Fund Budget by increasing estimated revenues and the amount appropriated to the Department of Police by \$860,451 for the purpose of funding an additional police recruit class.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Public Safety Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 5:00 p.m.

Ord. 2016-283

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to accept funds in the amount of \$26,988 from the Richmond Regional Planning District Commission and to appropriate the increase to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Capital Budget by increasing estimated revenues and the amount appropriated to the Riverfront Plan Implementation project in the Economic and Community Development category by \$26,988 for the purpose of funding the installation of plant material and educational signage at the T. Tyler Potterfield Memorial Bridge.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

Ord. 2016-284

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to accept funds in the amount of \$26,988 from the Richmond Regional Planning District Commission and to appropriate the increase to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Capital Budget by increasing estimated revenues and the amount appropriated to the Riverfront Plan Implementation project in the Economic and Community Development category by \$26,988 for the purpose of funding the installation of plant material and educational signage at the T. Tyler Potterfield Memorial Bridge.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

Ord. 2016-285

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to accept funds in the amount of \$1,000,000 from the Virginia Department of Transportation; to amend the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Capital Budget by establishing a new project in the Transportation Category called the I-95 and Broad Street Interchange Area project; and to appropriate the amount of \$1,000,000 to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Capital Budget by increasing estimated revenues and the amount appropriated to the new I-95 and Broad Street Interchange Area project by \$1,000,000 for the purpose of making certain improvements east of Interstate 95 in an area bounded generally by the Leigh Street Viaduct to the north, Mosby Street to the east, East Broad Street to the south, and Interstate 95 to the west.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-286

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to accept funds in the amount of \$1,085,372 from the Virginia Department of Transportation; to amend the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Capital Budget by establishing a new project in the Transportation Category called the Broad Street Streetscape project; and to appropriate the amount of \$1,085,372 to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Capital Budget by increasing estimated revenues and the amount appropriated to the new Broad Street Streetscape project by \$1,085,372 for the purpose of installing sidewalk and landscaping on West Broad Street between North Hamilton Street and North Laurel Street.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-287

To direct the sale of City-owned real estate located at 1006 West Franklin Street for the price of \$291,500 to K and L Sales LLC as the winning bidder at an auction held pursuant to Res. No. 2016-R036, adopted May 23, 2016.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-288

To direct the sale of City-owned real estate located at 1302 Floyd Avenue for the price of \$258,500 to Blackwood Investments, Inc. as the winning bidder at an auction held pursuant to Res. No. 2016-R037, adopted May 23, 2016.

Patrons: City Council

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-289

To direct the sale of City-owned real estate located at 2308 Idlewood Avenue for the price of \$68,200 to Kurt Engleman as the winning bidder at an auction held pursuant to Res. No. 2015-R57-60, adopted Sept. 28, 2015.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-290

To declare surplus and to direct the sale of City-owned real estate located at 500 Dove Street for nominal consideration to the Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority for the purpose of facilitating the redevelopment of the Dove Street Redevelopment Area.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-291

To declare surplus and to direct the sale of City-owned real estate located at 509 Dove Street for nominal consideration to the Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority for the purpose of facilitating the redevelopment of the Dove Street Redevelopment Area.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-292

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, on behalf of the City of Richmond, to accept the donation of (i) a fee simple interest in a portion of the property known as 390 South 11th Street from North Falls Acquisition, LLC and (ii) a fee simple interest in and a temporary construction easement on portions of the property known as 330 South 11th Street from North Falls Apartments II, LLC, all for the purpose of the construction of the Canal Walk Phase 2 project.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-293

To authorize Cellco Partnership, doing business as Verizon Wireless, to encroach upon the City of Richmond's rights-of-way with cell antennas and related equipment to be mounted on designated utility poles approximately located at 3545 West Cary Street, 3025 Parkwood Avenue, 1920 West Cary Street, 1520 Lakeview Avenue, 1928 Rosewood Avenue, 3336 Cutshaw Avenue, and 3101 Grove Avenue, respectively, upon certain terms and conditions.

Patrons: Mayor Jones (By Request)

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-294

To rezone the property known as 3022 West Broad Street from the B-3 General Business District to the B-7 Mixed-Use Business District.

Patrons: Mayor Jones (By Request)

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-295

To authorize the special use of the property known as 500 West Marshall Street for the purpose of a two-family dwelling and a multifamily dwelling containing up to three dwelling units, upon certain terms and conditions.

Patrons: Mayor Jones (By Request)

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-296

To amend and reordain Ord. No. 2009-101-110, adopted Jun. 8, 2009, which authorized the special use of 6278 Old Warwick Road, for the purpose of permitting up to 30 single-family attached dwellings, upon certain terms and conditions.

Patrons: Mayor Jones (By Request)

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-297

To repeal Ord. No. 84-19-28, adopted Feb. 27, 1984, and to authorize the special use of the property known as 3003 Parkwood Avenue for the purpose of permitting up to 32 multifamily dwelling units, upon certain terms and conditions.

Patrons: Mayor Jones (By Request)

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Planning Commission on Monday, December 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m.

ORD. 2016-298

To repeal ch. 2, art. V, div. 10 of the City Code, consisting of §§ 2-1002 and 2-1003, concerning the Carillon Advisory Committee, for the purpose of abolishing the Carillon Advisory Committee.

Patrons: Mr. Agelasto

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Education and Human Services Standing Committee meeting on Thursday, December 8, 2016, at 5:00 p.m.

ORD. 2016-299

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to accept funds in the amount of \$198,355.00 from the Virginia Department of Social Services and to appropriate the increase to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Special Fund Budget by increasing estimated revenues and the amount appropriated to the Department of Social Services by \$198,355.00 for the purpose of hiring three employees for the Healthy Families program.

Patrons: Mayor Jones

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Education and Human Services Standing Committee meeting on Thursday, December 8, 2016, at 5:00 p.m.

RES. 2016-R081

To express the sense of the City Council that a traffic signal light should be installed at the intersection of Brookland Park Boulevard and Lamb Avenue.

Patrons: Vice President Hilbert

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Land Use, Housing and Transportation Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 3:00 p.m.

RES. 2016-R082

To impose enhanced speeding penalties pursuant to City Code § 27-163 and to authorize the placement of signs giving notice thereof on the portion of West Roanoke Street located between Forest Hill Avenue and Midlothian Turnpike.

Patrons: Mr. Agelasto

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Public Safety Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 5:00 p.m.

RES. 2016-R083

To impose enhanced speeding penalties pursuant to City Code § 27-163 and to authorize the placement of signs giving notice thereof on the portion of Midlothian Turnpike located between Division Street and East Roanoke Street.

Patrons: Mr. Agelasto

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Public Safety Standing Committee meeting on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 5:00 p.m.

RES. 2016-R084

To request that the Mayor include in the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 budget proposed by the Mayor funds in the amount of \$75,000 for the creation of an employment program to connect panhandlers and the underemployed and underserved populations in the city of Richmond with day jobs and charitable and social service organizations by using mobile services and the City's 311 Call Center and planning committees as mechanisms to reduce homelessness and panhandling.

Patrons: Mr. Samuels

This ordinance was introduced and referred to the Education and Human Services Standing Committee meeting on Thursday, December 8, 2016, at 5:00 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business before	e the Council, the meeting adjourned at 9:51 p.m.
_	CITY CLERK